
 

 

 
 

 
Date: 10th May, 2024 

 
 
To 
BSE Limited 
Listing Department, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street - Fort, 
Mumbai — 400 001. 
 
Ref.: BSE Scrip Code - 539730 

Subject: Revised-Outcome of Board Meeting 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

Pursuant to Regulation 30 and 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 we wish to inform you that the Board of Directors of the Company at its 
meeting held today i.e. Tuesday, May 07, 2024 has inter-alia, considered, adopted and 
approved following items of business: 

1. The Standalone Audited Financial Results for the Quarter and Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2024 along with Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Cash Flow Statement 
as on that date. Enclosed are:  
a.  A copy of the said Financial Results along with the Auditor's Report thereon;  
b. Declaration of unmodified opinion on the Standalone Financial Results as per 

Regulation 33 (3) (d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 

2. Recommended Final Dividend at 7% per Equity Share having Face Value of Rs. 10/- 
each for the Financial Year 2023-24; subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 
ensuing 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company; 
 
 



 

 

 
In furtherance to the intimation filed by the Company dated March 31, 2024; the 
trading window for trading in securities of the Company by insiders closed on April 01, 
2024 till the end of 48 hours after the declaration of outcome of Board Meeting. 

The Board Meeting commenced at 01:00 p.m. and concluded at 9:45 P.m. 

Kindly oblige and take the same on your Records. 

Thanking you, 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

 

Jinkal Shah 
(Jinkal Soni) 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A40722. 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Standalone Balance Sheet for the y ear ended 3 1 March, 2024 ( Rs. In Lacs) 

Notes As at 3 1 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 4 ,61 5.32 3,862.57 
b) Capital Work-in-Progress -
c) Other Intangible Assets 4 41.95 30.78 
d) f"innncial assets 

i) Investments 5 0.28 0.28 
ii) Loans -
iii) Other Financial Assets 6 196.20 51.16 

e) Other Non -current Assets 7 186.24 162.05 
Total non - current assets 5,039.97 4 ,106.84 

CURRENT ASSETS 
a) Inventories 8 17,499.80 15,012.36 
b) Financial Assets 

i) Investments 9 80.80 30.80 
ii) Trade and other receivables 10 6,484.88 3,456.03 
iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 107.17 294.65 
iv) Bank Balance other than (iii) above 12 27.85 48.86 
iv) Loans 13 24.58 15.05 
v) Other Financial Assets 14 339.68 1,250.66 

c) Other Current Assets 15 1,155. 19 1,512.69 
Total current assets 25,719.95 21,621.11 

TOTAL ASSESTS 30,759.91 25,727.95 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
a) Equity share capital 16 469.92 453.23 
b) Other equity 17 11,677.20 9, 184.35 

Total Equity 12,147.12 9,637.57 

LIABILITIES 

Non-Current Liabilities 
a) Financial 1;abilities 

i) Borrowmgs 18 1,279.8 1 1,544.00 
b) Provisions 19 236.58 196.41 
c) Other non - current liabilities - -
d) Deferred Tax Liability 413.65 384.30 

Total non current - liabilities 1,930.04 2,124.71 

Cun:ent Li@hilities 
a) Financial liabilities 

i) Borrowings 20 9,271. 18 7,110.65 
ii) Trad e and other payable 21 6,294.69 5,934.27 
iii) Other financial liabi lities 22 3.84 33.19 

b) Provisions 
c) Other current liabilities 23 559.54 458.54 
d) Curren t tax liabilities (net) 24 553.50 429.01 

Total current liabilities 16,682.75 13,965.67 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 30,759.91 25,727.95 

Significant accou nting policies 2 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of 
these Financial Statements 

Notes (Including Significan t Accounting Policies) 
Forming Part of the Financial Statemen ts 

The above Balance Sheet should be read in a:.:::~~L~ conjunction with the accompanying notes. I 

,~ru· ".. :'I! I 
! <.l '2 

As per our attached report of even date. 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Fredun ~ :ij. ~ 
Pharmaceuticals Limited d ~f;$._ 
CIN No - L24239MH1987PLC043662 

For R H Nlsar & Co 

Rakesh isar Dr. (Mrs) Daulat N.Medhora MR. Fredun N. Med hora 
Managing Director & CFO 
DIN :0 1745348 

Proprietor Joint Managing Director 
Membership No - 103659 DIN: 0 1745277 

UDIN No. : '.)_~) \) ~ ~ 5 9 ~ \<- C®i G: J ~ '1) ~ 
Place - Mumbai 
Date :- 7th May, 2024 
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FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3 1 Ma rch, 2024 (Rs. In Lacs) 

Re venu e 
Rev~nue from Operations 
OtJ1cr Operating Revenue 
Other income 
Total Income 
Ex2enses 
Cost of materials consumed 
Cost of materials consumed for R & D 
Changes in i11ventories of rnw materials, packing mAterials, stock in trade and wip 
ManufActu ring & Service Cost 
Employee benefit Exp. 
Finance Cost 
Depreciation and amortisation ex-pense 
OperAting and other expen ses 
Payment to Auditors 
lmparirement loss I (reversal) 
Total Expenses 
Pro fit be fore exceptional items a n d t ax 
Exceptional Items 
Profit before tax from c onti nuing operations 
Tax Expenses: 

Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 

Profit for the year from continuing operations 
Profit be fore tax from discontinue d operations 
Tax expenses of discon tinued operations 
Profit for the year from discontinued operation s 

Net Profit for the year 

Ot he r Comprehens ive Income 
Items tha t will not be classified to profit and loss 
i) Re measurement of post - employment ben efit obligations 
ii) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 
Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss 
Total Co m pre hensive Income for th e year 
Earning pe r equity share (Fac e value of Rs. 10/- each) 
Earning per equity share of continuing operations 
Basic and d iluted (in Rs .) 

Earning per equity share of discon tinued operations 
Basic EPS (in Rs.) of continuing and discon tinued operations 
Diluted Basic EPS (in Rs.) of con tinuing and d iscontinued operations 

Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements 

As per our attached report of even dat e . 

For RH Nisar & Co 

, r 
Rakesh Nisar 
Proprietor 
Membership No - 1036 5 9 

UDIN No. : ,'.2.J.j IQ~ (:, SC( 0 'X:-((9, (;. ( fo CJ 3 ') 
Pla ce - Mumbai 
Da t e :- 7th May, 2024 

N otes 
As at 31 March, 

2024 
As at 31 March, 2023 

25 34,657.69 27 ,434. 17 
26 157.93 33.39 
27 91.57 182.19 

34 ,907.18 27,6 4 9 .75 

28 28,241.83 24,556.66 
29 134.19 83.48 
30 -2,243.65 -3,771.58 
31 1,361.65 958.41 
32 1,249.98 1,154.30 
33 1,365.01 928.15 
34 379.59 280.93 
35 2,263.39 1,698.54 

10.00 10.00 

32 ,761.99 25,898.90 
2 ,145.19 1,750.85 

-
2,145.19 1,750.85 

553.50 429 .0 1 
29.35 241.18 

1,562.34 1,080.6 6 
-

-
-

1,562.34 1,080.66 

7.04 -4.92 

1,569.39 1,075.74 
36 

33.66 24.13 

33.66 24.13 
33.32 22.93 

2 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 0 
CJN No - L24239MH1987PL~043662 
For Fredun Pharmaceutic als Lim! 

~ 
Dr. (Mrs) Daulat N. Medhora 
Joint Managing Dire ctor 
DIN : 01745277 



Note (al: Eguity Share Capital (Refer note - 16 ) 

Particulars Amount 
As at 0 l /loril, 2022 4 43.26 
Chanees in enuitv share canila l durin" I.he yea r 9 .96 
As nt 31 March, 2023 453.23 
/Is a t O l Amil, 2023 453 .23 
Cha n1?cs in eouitv share cnnit.al durinl! I.he vcar 16 .69 
As at 31 March, 2024 469.92 

Note (b): Other egulty (Refer note - 17 l 

Particulars Capital Reserve Securities Premium Retained EarnJngs 

Bnlance as at 01 April, 2022 4,541.15 1,800.40 
Add : Profit for U1e yea r . 1,080.66 
Add: Premium for t he year 955.71 . 
Other com1>rch ens ivc income for the vcar . 4.92 
Total comprehensive income for the venr . . 
Less: D ividend on E:quity Sh a res . . -31. 17 
Balance ns nt 31 Mnrch, 2023 5 ,496.86 2 ,854.81 
Profit fo r I.he year . . 1,562.34 
O U1cr com1>rehensivc income for the year . -7.04 
Add :- Share Prem ium . 1,645.87 . 
Totnl comprehensive income for the year . . 

Dividend on Equitv Slrnres . . -32.79 
Balance ns nt 3 1 March, 2024 . 7,142.72 4,377.32 

Nnture and purpose of r eserves :-

Securities Premium 
Securities Premium reserve is used to record U1c prcmjum on issue o f shares which is utilised in accordance with U1e provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 

The above statement of c hanges in equity s hould be rea d in conjuction with the accompanying notes. 

/Is per our a ttac hed report of e ven date. 

For RH Nlsar & Co 
Chartered Accou ntants 

~Number - 120895W 

Rakesh Nisar 

Mumbai 
Dntc :- 7th May, 2024 

For a n d on behalf of the Boa rd of Directors of Fredun Phnrmnceutlcnls Limite 

CIN No - L24239MH1987PLC043662 
For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limite d 

~ 
Dr. (Mrs) Dnulat N. Medhora 
Joint Managing Director 
DIN : 01745277 

~/' M~h«=•. M•1 
Managing Director & CFO 
DIN :01745348 

Total 

6,341.55 
1,080.66 

955.7 1 
4.92 

-31.17 
8 ,351.67 
1,562.34 

-7 .04 
J.645.87 

. 

-32.79 
11,520.05 



1. Corporate Information 

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited ('the company') is a public company domiciled and headquartered in India. 
It is incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 and its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 

FREDUN as a group is dedicated t o improving lives of people. Compa ny's aim is not only profitabi li ty but is 
effective efficiency. With years of experience in manufacturing various pharmaceutical formulations Fredun 
Pharmaceuticals Ltd has built a good reputat ion as a reliable and ethical Company having buyers which not 
only include lead ing Pharma Companies of India but also across Africa, South East Asia and CIS countries and 
Latin America. 

The Company in its Endeavour to move ahead has now ventu red into manufacturing of dietary /herbal 

supplements, nutraceuticals, and other hea lthcare products along with Animal Healt hcare products also 

w ith products ranging from allopathic formulations to on field diagnostic kits, Company's main aim is to be 

a holistic healthcare provider. The Company has its own manufacturing facil ity at Palghar which is WHO 

GMP approved. 

The standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended March, 31, 2024 are approved and 

Authorised for issue in accordance w ith resolution of the Board of Directors on May, 7, 2024 

2. Basis of preparation 

a) Statement of compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting 
Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with relevant 
rules issued there under and other provisions of the Act. 

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per t he company's normal operating 

cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 

products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their real isation in cash 

and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 

current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities. b.° Historical cost convention 

b) Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial 
assets and liabil ities measured at Fair va lue. 

c) Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the applicat ion of account ing pol icies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabil ities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any futu re 
periods affected. 

The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are: 

i) Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment 

ii) Provision for inventories 



3. Significant accounting policies 

The accou nting policies set out below have been applied consistent ly to all periods presented in these 

financial statements. 

a) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, including any attributable cost for 

bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, less accumulated 

depreciation/amortization and impairment loss. 

Losses arising from retirement and ga ins or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment's are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed 

as "Capita l work-in-progress". 

Depreciation is provided on straight line method over the est imated useful life as determined by 

management wh ich is in line with that prescribed under Schedule II of the Act. Depreciation is provided 

on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the month on which asset is ready for use. The useful lives are reviewed by 

the management at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the 

unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life. 

Property, plant and equipment and Furniture and fixtures, costing individually up to< 5,000 or less, are 

depreciated fully in the year of purchase. if the aggregate of such items constitutes more than 10 

percent of the total actual cost, the depreciation rates applicable to such items are applied. 

Depreciation/amortization for the year is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

A fixed asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is 

expected from its use and disposal. Depreciation on fixed assets added/ disposed off/ discarded during 

the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to month of addit ion/ disposal/ discarding. 

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at 

cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable t hat the f uture economic benefits associated 

with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

b) Impairment 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each repo rt ing date to determine if 

there is any indication of Impairment. For assets in respect of which any such indication exists and fo r 

-->'-~~~ intangible assets mandatorily tested annua lly or at period end for impairment, the asset's recoverable 

verable amount . 



For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped togethe r into the smallest group of assets 

(cash generating unit or "CGU") that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are la rgely 

independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CG Us. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its net se lling price . In 

assessing value in use, t he estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre­

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to t he asset or CGU. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment toss recognised in 

respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the ca rryi ng amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU 

and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. 

If at t he balance sheet date there is an indication t hat a previously assessed impairment loss no longer 

exists or has decreased, the assets or CGU 's recoverable amount is estimated. For assets other than 

goodwill, the impairment loss is reversed to the extent t hat t he asset's carrying amount does not exceed 

the carrying amount that wou ld have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 

impairment loss had been recognised. Such a reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss; 

however, in t he case of revalued assets, the reversa l is credited directly revaluation Surplus except to the 

extent that an on loss on t he same reva lued asset was previously recognised as an expense in t he 

Statement Profit and Loss. Impairment loss recogn ised for goodwil l is not reversed in a subsequent 

period un less the impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an exceptiona l nature that 

is not expected recur and subsequent externa l events have occurred that reverse the effect of t hat event 

c) Non-current assets held for sale 

Non - current assets and liab ilities are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be 
recovered primarily t hrough sa le rather than through continued use. 

Such asset s are generally measured at lower of t heir carrying amount and fair value less costs to seal. 
Losses on initial classification as held fo r sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are 
recoginsed in statement of Profit o r Loss. 

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and invest ment 
properties are no longer amortised or depreciated. 

d) Inventories 

Inventories which com prise of raw materials, work-in progress, fin ished goods, stock-in-trade, sto res and 

Spares, and packing materials are carried at the lower of cost and net rea lizable value. 

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase cost of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventor ies to their present locat ion and condit ion. 

In determini ng the cost, fi rst in first out method is used. In the case of manufactured inventories and 

work in progress, f ixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production 



The net realizable value of work-in-progress is determined w ith reference to the selling prices of related 

finished products. Raw materials and other Supplies held for use in the production of finish products are 

not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined it is estimated that the 

cost of the finished products will exceed thei r net realizable value 

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis . 

e) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary is recognised when property in the goods or all 

significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer and no significant 

uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the 

goods and regarding its collection. The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of goods and services 

tax {GST), and is net off returns, trade discount and quantity discounts. 

Revenue from shared services is recognised as and when services are rendered and related costs are 

incurred, in accordance with the terms of the contractual agreement. 

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis after taking into account the amount outstanding 

and the interest rate applicable. 

Export Incentives 

Export benefits availed as per preva lent schemes are accrued each year in which the goods are exported 

and when no significant uncertainty exist regarding their ultimnte collection. 

Commission income is recognized as and when services are rendered, in accordance with the terms of 

the contractual agreement. 

f) Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 

are capitalized as part of cost of such asset till such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. A 

qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use. Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incu rs in connection 

with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost incurred on qualifying assets are capitalised and added to 

the cost of qualifying asset under work-in-progress. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an 

expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

g) Product expi ry claims 

Significant judgments are invo lved in determining the estimated stock lying in the market with product 

she lf l ife and estimates of li kely claims on account of expiry of such unsold goods lying with stockists. 

h) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances 

1. Functional and Presentation currency 



2. Foreign currency transaction and balances 

Transactions de nominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date 
of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange t ransactions settled during the year 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the yea r. 

Monetary assets and liabiliti es denominated in Foreign Currencies as at t he bala nce sheet date are 

translated int o Indian rupees at the closing exchange ra t es on t hat date, t he resultant exchange 

differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

i) Taxes on Income 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

except t o the extent that it relates items recognised direct ly in equit y or in Other Comprehensive 

Income. 

1. Current Tax 

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of 
t he net profit or loss for the year. Current tax is measured at the amount expected .to be paid to the tax 
authorities in accordance with the taxation laws preva iling in the respective jurisd ictions. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right t o set off 

t he recognised amounts, and it is intended to rea lize the asset and set off the liability on a net basis or 

simultaneously. 

2. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that Future taxable profits wi ll be 

available against which they can be used. 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent 

that it has become probable that future ta xable profits will be available against which they can be used, 

Deferred tax measured at the tax rates t hat are expected to be applied to deferred tax assets when they 

are realized or deferred tax liabilities when they are settled, using tax rates enacted substantively 

enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

liabilities and assets, and t hey relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 

taxable entity, or on different tax entities but they intend to settle current tax liabi lities and assets on a 

net basis or their tax assets and liabil ities wi ll be realized simultaneously 

j) Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financia l 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

1. Financial Assets 

The Company classifies financia l assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair Va lue through 
other comprehensive income or fair va lue through profit and loss on t he basis of its part of financial 
statements business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
charact eristics of the financial asset. 



asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are expensed in 

statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company dere cognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset exp ire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantial ly all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control t he t ransferred asset, the Company 
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liabi lity for amounts it may have to pay. If 
the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 
the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recogn izes a collateralized borrowing 
for the proceeds received, 

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets 

ca rried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk for trade receivables, the Company applies the simplied approach 

permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 

from initial recognition of the receivables. 

The Company subsequently measures its investments in mutua l Funds at Fair value through Statement 

of Profit and Loss. 

2. Financial Liabilities 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financia l liabilities or as 

equity in accordance with the substance_ of the contractual arrangements and definition of a financia l 

liability and an equity instrument 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities. 

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at" fair value, reduced by t ransaction costs (in case of financial 

liability not at fa ir value through profit and loss}, that are directly attributable to the issue of financial 

liability. After initia l recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective 

interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

outflow (including all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiums or discounts) through the 

expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 

on initial recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably 

designated as measured at fair va lue through profit and loss. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial l iability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantia lly modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to 
the end of financia l year which are unpaid; they are recognised initially at their fa ir value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

k) Offsetting financial instruments 

Financia l assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where 
there is lega lly enforceable right to offset the recongnised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or realise the asset and settle liabi lity simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not 

~;{~~~be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the 

~ ;;.-~~ ~ ~ . )lent of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counte~rart fjJAf~ 
cW-1'' .rts \OJ ~ c& ... -~N.ltl.°'~"'' l . //-( ·~ "'°' ) Q (i\, 

\<;... \ ~'i.li-~I\) . 7.:r( r- z B!UMSAI r-1 
-.:, -'- \\) _./ / ? v. 

,, - c> "' ~ tr \. "">i ' ·()"" . 
-~~ ~ 



I) Fair value measurement 

Fai r value is the price that would be rece ived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabil ity in an orderly 

transact ion between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the 

most advantageous market t o which the Company has access at that date. The fair va lue of a liabil ity 

reflects its non-performance risk. 

A number of the Com pany's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of Fair values, 

for both financial and non-financia l assets and liabilities. When one is available, the Company measures 

the fair va lue of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market 

is regarded as active if transactions for t he asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and 

vo lume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active 

market, t hen the Company uses va luation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen va luation technique incorporates all of 

the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. 

The best evidence of the fair va lue of a financia l instrument on initial recognition is normal ly the 

transact ion price - ie. the fair va lue of the consideration given or received. 

m) Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 

chief operating decision maker {CODM }. The CODM assesses the financial performance and position of 

the company, and makes strategic decisions. 

n) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that an out flow of resources wil l be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which 

reliable estimate can be made. 

Provisions for breakage and expiry 

Cost of return on account of breakage and expiries are estimated on the basis of past experience. 

Provision is made in respect of cost for breakage and expiries in the year of sale of goods. 

Contingencies 

A disclosure for contingent liability is made w hen there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 

that may, but probably w ill not, require an outflow of resources. Where t here is a possible obligation or 

a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is 

made. 

o) Research and development 

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken w ith the prospect of gaining new scientific or t echnical 

knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the St atement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. 

The development activities undertaken by t he company are subject t o technical, regu latory and other 

uncertaint ies, such that, in the opinion of management, the criteria for capitalization are not met prior 

t o obtaining in marketing approval by the regulatory aut horit ies in markets. Internal development costs 

that do not meet these criteria are therefore expensed as and when incurred. 

p) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is ca lculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the 

~\S~'!... <f~weighted average number of equ ity shares outstand ing during the financial year. The weighted a~.i;a~e -:, 
~·r~1lRw,00 umber of eq uity shares outstanding during the period and for a11 periods o re e is agj11s.t~~hti>ft·".· 
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events, such as bonus shares, other than t he conversion of potentia l equity shares that have changed 

t he number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources 

For the purpose of ca lculating diluted earnings per share, diluted earni ngs per share adjusts the figures 

used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of 

interest and other fin ancing costs associated w ith dilutive potent ia l equity shares, and t he we ighted 

ave rage number of additional equity shares t hat wou ld have been outst anding assuming the conversion 

of al l dilutive potential equity shares. 

q) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term (with an 
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value. 

4. Recent Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the exist ing standards 

under Companies (India n Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to t ime. For the year ended 

March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards 

applicable to the Company. 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Note - 3 

Property, plant and equipment 

Description Freehold Land Buildings Plant and Machinery 
Computer I 

Hardware 
Gross Block 

Balance as at 01 April, 2022 52.35 2,020.44 1,181.29 62 .28 
Additions - - 525.09 9.89 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 52.35 2,020.44 1,706.38 72. 17 

Gross Block 

Balance as at 01 April, 2023 52.35 2,020.44 1,706.38 72 .1 7 
Additions - 109.17 755.28 14.66 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 52.35 2,129.60 2,461.66 86.83 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 - 261.04 289.51 29.58 
Depreciation for the year - 70.97 77.94 17.26 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 - 332.02 367.45 46.84 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 - 332.02 367.45 46.84 
Depreciation for the year - 65.30 123.23 19.93 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 - 397.32 490.68 66.77 

Net Block value as at 31 March 
2023 

52.35 1,688.42 1,338.93 25.32 

et Block val~March 
2024 /'"'"'~ 52.35 1,732.28 1,970.98 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Note - 3 

Property, plant and equipment 

Description 
Furniture and 

Factory Equipment Electrical Fittings 
Electr ical 

fixtures Insta lla tion 
Gross Block 
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 209.42 53 .89 55.65 240.82 
Additions 64.89 139.23 1.95 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 274.31 193. 12 57.60 24 0 .82 

Gross Block 
Ba lance as at 01 April, 2023 274 .3 1 193.12 57.60 240.82 
Additions 4 1.28 90.31 0 .19 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 315.58 283.43 57.79 240.82 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April , 2022 76.76 15 .97 17.96 153.28 
Depreciation for the yea r 24.47 20.06 5 .70 24.55 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 101.23 36.03 23.66 177.83 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Ba la n ce as a t 01 April, 2023 101.23 36.03 23.66 177 .83 
Depreciation for the year 30.1 9 55.09 4.42 24.04 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 131.42 91.13 28.08 201.87 

Net Block value as at 31 March 
2023 

173.08 157.09 33.94 62.99 

184.17 192.31 29.71 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Note - 3 

Property, plant and equipment 

Description Lab Glassware Motor Car Office Premises Office Equipment 

Gross Block 

Balance as at 01 April, 2022 53.25 130.36 79.72 15.57 
Addition s 1.20 154.43 - 6 .54 
Disposals - 9 .01 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 54.44 275.78 79.72 22. 11 

Gross Block 

Balance as at 01 April, 2023 54.44 275.78 79.72 22. 11 
Additions 2.99 86.09 9 .57 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 57.43 361.87 79.72 31.68 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 26.22 58.85 23.45 4 .37 
Depreciation for the year 5.30 18.97 4 .05 2.92 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 31.52 77.82 27.50 7.30 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as a t 01 April, 2023 3 1.52 77.82 27.50 7.30 
Depreciation for the year 5.46 31.24 4 .05 5.15 
Bala nce as at 31 March, 2024 36.98 109.06 31.55 12.44 

Net Block value as at 31 Ma rch 
2023 

22.92 197.97 52.22 14.81 
............... 

Net Block value as at 31 Marc~~~ 
2024 ,., _r;..- ~A;/ - 20.45 252.81 48.17 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Note - 3 

Property, p lant and equipment 

Description 

Gross Block 
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 

Gross Block 

Balance as at 01 April, 2023 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 
Depreciation for the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 
Depreciation for the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 

Net Block value as at 31 March 
2023 

Electronic Devices 

37.02 
16.62 

53.64 

53.64 
17.43 

71.07 

6.81 
4 .30 

11.11 

11.11 
6 . 13 

17.24 

42.53 

53.83 

Total 

4,192.05 
919.83 

9.01 
5,102.87 

5,102.87 
1, 126.97 

6 ,229.84 

963.81 
276.50 

1,240.30 

1,240.30 
374.22 

1,614.52 

3,862.57 

4,615.32 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 
Note - 4 

Other Intangible Assets 

Description 

Gross Block 

Balance as at 01 April, 2022 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 

Gross Block 
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April, 2022 
Depreciation for the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 
Depreciation for the year 
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 

Net Block value a s at 31 March 2023 

Computer Software 

21.71 

29.63 

51.34 

51.34 
16.54 

67.88 

16.13 
4.44 

20.56 

20.56 
5 .37 

25.93 

30.78 

41.95 

Total 

21.71 
29.63 

51.34 --

51.34 
16.54 

-

67.88 --

16.13 
4.44 

20.56 

20.56 
5 .37 

25.93 

30.78 

41.95 



F REDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statem ents for the year cDdcd 31/03/2024 

Particulars As at 31 M arch , 2024 
As a t 31 March, 

2023 

Note - 5 

Investments : Non-Current 
Investments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 

Unquoted 

SVC Bank Ltd. 1260 EQuitv shares of Face value Rs. JO/ - Eachl 0.03 0.03 
Saraswat Bank ltd. 12500 EQuilv shares of Face ,·aJuc R!>. 10/ - Each! 0.25 0.25 

Total 0.28 0.28 
Aa.a.rce.ate amounl of auotcd investments and market value thereof 
AC!.urerrnle amount of unauotcd investments 0.2S 0.2S 
A1rn:re'1ate amount of imnairmcnt in the value of investments 

Note - 6 

Non - Current financial assets - Others 
Security Deoosits J49.91 51.16 
Fixed Deoosits with Bank - maturity more than 12 months 46.2S 
Total 196.20 51.16 

Note· 7 
Other Non Current assets 
Unsecuxed - Considered Good 
Capital advances 186.24 J62.05 
Total 186.24 162.05 

Note - 8 
Inventories 

:(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable valuel 
Raw matcriaJs 8,063.84 6,401.0J 
Packing materials 1,821.01 3,240.05 
Work in progress 5,653.83 3,849.J2 
Finished produc t 1,961.12 J ,522.J8 
Total 17,499.80 15,0 12.36 

Note - 9 
Investments 
(Investments carried at fair value throueh profit and loss} 
Investment in mutual funds funquoat ed) 
2666.359 units l3 l March 2023: :2666.359 Unitsl of Mutual Fund:!. J.2 1.20 
219.557 u nits (31 March 2023: 2J9.557 Units! of Mutual Funds J.2 1.20 
3453.647 units 131 March 2023. 3453.647 Units! of Mutual Funds 1.3 J.30 
2693.168 units (3J March, 2023: 2693. 168 Units) of Mut ual Funds 

J J.00 
J502.004 units f3 J March, 2023: 1502.004 Units) of Mutual Funds I.I I.JO 
722J33 .295 (31 March. 2023: 484J33.827 units of Mutual Funds 75 25.00 
Total 80.80 30.80 
A0 Ul"'eeate amount of auoted investments and market value thereof 
Aeereeate amount of unouoted investments so.so 30.80 
AJ?.Rrcgate amount of impairment in the value of investments 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Particulars As at 31 March, 2024 
As at 3 l March, 

2023 

Note - 10 
Trade r eceivables 

Unsc-cur~d. considered good 
Trade Rcce1\'abk 6,484.88 3 ,456.03 
Less:- Allo\1.·ancc for doubtful debts 
Less:- lmnaired Cr-edit 
Total 6,484.88 3,456.03 
l 0.1 ThC" Company has used practical expedient for computing the expected credit loss allowanc(" for trade 
receivables as per significant accounting poJicy - Impairment of financinl asset 

Trade Receivables a~ein~ sch edule 

Outstanding f or following periods from due date of pavment 
Particulars Less tban 6 6 months - 1 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years Total 

months year 

Outstanding for following periods from 
due d at e 
of payment as at March 3 1 , 2024 

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 
5,263.93 589.75 251.31 220.38 159.50 6,484.88 good 

Undisputed Trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 

Undisputed Trade Receh1ables -
credit impa ired 

- -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 

-
Disputed Trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - -
Outstanding for following p eriods from 
due d a.Lt:. 

of pa yment as at March 3 1 , 2023 
- -

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 
2,088.71 705.86 497.75 147.39 16.31 3,456.03 good Ma rch 

Undisputed Trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk - -
Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 

- - -
Disputed Trade receivables - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk - -
Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired -

(Note) 

10. l Balances of Trade Receivables are subject to confinnation and reconciliation and generally non interest bearing. The Trade Receivables has been pledged against the 
loan and facilities taken from the Bank. 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes t o financial sta t ements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Pa rticulars As at 3 1 March, 2024 
As at 3 1 March1 

2023 

Note - 11 
Cunent Financia l Assets - Ca sh and Cash Eauivalents 
Cash on hand 43.95 49.93 

Ba la n ce l~,.ith Ban k s 

In current accounts 63.23 244.72 

Fixed Oeoosits with Bank - maturity Jess than 3 months 
T otal 107. 17 294.65 

11.1 Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on time deposit rates. Short-tenn deposits arc made for 
varying periods of between three months and twelve months , depending on the immediate cash requirements of 
the Company, and cam inter est at the r espective short-tcnn deposit rates. The deposits maintained by the 
company with banks comprises time deposits, which can be withdrawn by the company at any point without prior 
notice or pen a lty on the principal. 

11 .2 There are no repatriation restriction s with regards to cash and cash cquivaJents 

Note · 12 • Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances 
Earmarked Balances 3.77 33.17 
Bank Deposits (With Original Maturitv more than thr ee months but less than 12 Months) 24.08 15.69 
Total 27.85 48.86 

Note · 13 
CUrrcnt Financial Assets - Loans 

Loans to EmpJovces 24.58 15.05 
Total 24.58 15.05 

Note · 14 
Current Financial Assets • Other 
Other receivables 

Advance to Creditors 339.68 1,250.66 
Total 339.6 8 1 ,250.66 

Note - 1 5 

Other Current Asset s 
Othors 143.88 75.18 

Balance with Government Authorities: l,OJ J.30 1,437.5 1 
Total 1 ,155.19 1,512.69 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
No te• to flnanclul statem e nts for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Partlcu.la n JU at 3 1 March, 2024 kt at 3 1 March, 2023 

Note · 16 
Jl'.nuitv shi:..rc caoitnl 
Aut h orh:cd C aDitRI 
I 00 00,000 13 1 Mo.rc:h , 2023 1 00 00 000} equity shares or R3, I 0 ench 10 000.00 10 000.00 
laaucd aubacribcd a.nd Cullv DaJd-uo • h are caDltal 
46 99. 162 f3 I Mnrch 2 023 - 45 32 272) cquily :-1h ru-cs of Rs. 10 cRch 469.92 4 53.23 
TOTAL 469.92 4 53.23 

fa) Reconciliation orE:qulty ahnrca outstandlnr: at the ber:lnnlnr: and at the end of the rc oortlnir: oerlod 

P utlculara A.. at 3 1 March, 2024 JU at 3 1 March. 2023 

Number I Amount Number I I Amount 
Number of cauitv shares at the be1rinn inl! or t.he venr 45.32,272.0 0 I 453 .23 44 32 643.00 I I 443 .26 
Add - Further Issue (Equity shnrc:i I 1,66 890.00 I 16.69 99 629.00 I I 9.96 
Number or equi1·v shares nt the encl of the year 4 6 99.162.00 I 46 9 .92 45 32 272.00 I I 4 53.23 

(b) Tcrma I rltht.a attached to equ ity shares 

The company has n single clas5 of equity shores hnving n p;u- value of Rs. 10/- JX:r :share. Accordingly, n.JJ equity :slrn.n~ rRnk equalJ_y with regard to dividends ruid shnrc in 1hc compnny·s rc~idunl 
nss<'t~. The cquily ~h:trcs arc entitiled lo received dividend as dcclnrcd from time to lime. The votings righ ts of nn c<1uity :o;hri rcholdcr onn poll (not on i:ihow of hands) nrc in proport ion to its shMc of 
the pnid - up equity cnpit:d of the company. Voling rights cn.nnol be cxccrcised in rc:spcct or s h nrcs on which :my c:\11 or other $Urns presently payRblc h:we not been pr1id . Fnilur«' to pny uny nmnu nt 
called up on shares may lead to forfeiture o f the shr1re$. On wind ing up of t.hc company, the holdern of equity shares will be entitled to received the n-siduaJ as~ts or the company, rcmaning nft cr 
di:,:lrilJut ion or all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shnres held 

l(c] Pnrtlculan or shareholders holdlng more t h • n 5% of s hnrcs 

P a rtlc ul an 

Dr. Mn D•ulat l'f. Medho r• 
Mr. N•riman B. Med ho ra 
J\lr. Nlkh il Vora 

f(cil Particulars or shaircholdcrs holdlnr: or Promote rs I Promoters Group of the Comp11nv 

P art.iculars 

Dr. Mn DRulnt N. Mc dhora 
J\tr. Narlman B. Mcdhora 
Mr . Fredun Mcdhora 

Particula rs 

Nole - 17 
Other Equity 
Securities premium account 

0~1.fn nce n s !)Cr Ins t On.Janee ~heel 
Addition~ 

DnlAncc :\S at vc A.r end 

Rctnfncd earnlngs 
1JnJ;1ncc .. s per lm1t e.'l,l;:i.nce ~heel 
Atltl: - Profit for the vcar 
IA:ss:- Items or other Compr~hc:ni1ivc income recognised directly in Re tained Earnings: 
Re·mcasurcmcnt y.:Uns/ (losses ) on dcfuicd benefit p lan.s (nct of IR.'1:} 
l~css:- Dividend 
Onlnncc ns al vcnr end 

As at 31 Mnrch, 2024 

Number or 
Shares 

14.10,898.00 
7.19,815.00 
3 .05,473.00 

"• of total sh11.n: 
holdinl[ 

30.02% 
15.32% 
6.50% 

AtJ at 31 Much, 2024 
Number or 

Shares 
14,10, 898.00 

7 .19,815.00 
1. 79,672.00 

% or total sh1trc 
holding 

30.02% 
15.32% 
3.82% 

As nt 31 March, 2023 

Number or Shu·es 

13,92.830.00 
7,19,815.00 
3,12,872.00 

"· o r total share 
holdin g: 

30.73% 

15.88":• 
6.90"1• 

"!• change during the yenr 

0 .01 
0 .01 

-0.29% 

.A. at 31 March, 2024 ~at 31 Mnrch, 2023 

5 ,496.86 4 5 41.1 5 

1,645.87 955.7 1 
7,142.72 5,496.86 

2.854.8 1 1 800.4 0 
1,562.34 1.080.66 

4 .92 

-7.04 
-32.79 -31.17 

4.377.32 2.854.81 

//?r 
( 



FREDUJlf PHARMACEUTICALS LOUTED 
Notes to fina ncial ata t cmcnts for the year ended 31/ 03/ 2024 

Particula rs Aa at 31 Marc h , 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

Share Warrant Is.sued 
Balance as per lmn Balance sheet 832.68 21.25 
Add:- Pavmcnt received durinit vcar of wnrrnnts 1,001.98 896.43 
Less :- Warrants converted into equil'v s hares 
Ba.lance as a t yenr end 

- 1,677.50 
!J;.1..1§. 

-85.00 
832.6'1 

Total 11,677.20 ~ 

Note -18 
Borrowi.n.n: Non-current 
Secured 

al from banks 924.63 1_,262.48 
bl from other p :vtics 355. 18 281.52 

Total 1,279.81 1 ,544.00 
18. l Loens ftJ"C sec;:urcd M -l'inst ~btors. plant and machinery, stock. Motor Car and lmmovto;bale Pro~rrv 

18.2 The Comoanv has taken workirtA capital loan• at intereat r.mgin_g_ from 9% to 11 .50 % per annum. 
18.3 Term b_'\ns were apphcd ror the purpose ror which the loans were obtamcd. 
18.4 The loans from bank are nls o sec::ured by pcrsona.l gun.rnntec of Mr. f'redun Mcdhora, Or. Mrs. Daulnt Mcdhora And Mr. Nariman Medhora 

J~.S Qunrteri)' statement• of current assets filed by the Company with banks arc in RA:reemcnt w ith the books of accounts 
18.6 The Company is not declared as wilfu l defaulter by any bl'l.nk or financial institution or any other lender 

Note - 19 
Lon« term provisions 

Lon« Term Loan 
Provisions for emplovec benefits:-
Provisions for Crnt'uitv 116.21 99.72 
Provisions for Comt>Cnsated Absences 120.37 96.69 

Total 236.5 8 196.41 

Note - 20 

Borrowino: Current 
Secured 

Al from banks 4.423.02 3.429.89 
bl Current maturities of loni;t-term debt from Banks 388.53 212.19 
c) Current maturities of lonR-terro debt from Others 206.62 127.58 
di Packing Credit/Export Bill Disc:ountinR 3,607.72 3,011.25 

Unsecured 
~ f~om ~ther parties 145.67 139.20 
b) from related pn.rtics 499.63 190.53 

Total 9,271. 18 7 ,110.65 
20, 1 Loans are secured llgllln• t Debtors, plant And mAchinery, stock, Motor Car And lmmovebale Property 

20.2 The Company has taken workinR capital loans at interest ranjtjnR from 9% to I J .SO % per annum. 
20.3 Term ioans were applied for the pufl)O$e for which U\c )00.na were obtained. 

:20.4 The loans from bank are als o sec::urcd bY pcrsonnl guamntec of Mr. F'redun Medhorrt, Or. Mrs . Oaulnt Medhora nnd Mr. NarimM Mcdhorn 
20.5 _Q_~nrt_erly statements of current assets flied by the Company with banks nre in f\Rrccment with the books of accou nts 
20.6 The Company is not declnrcd ns wilful defaulter by any bank or f'innncial institution or llllY other lender 
:20. 7 Lo.Rn from rek'ltcd Party hn.s been paid at par to the Market Lending Rate and whlCh s hall be repayable on demnnd 
20.8 It includes packinp,: credit hmit which is also s~ured by inventory and book• debts or the Companv 

Note - 21 
Dues to micro and sma..11 cntcmrise !Refer Note - 431 3,336.09 1,938.28 
Due~ 10 creditors other than micro and small entcn>risc 2,958.60 3,995.99 
Total 6 ,294.69 5,934.27 



l'REDUN P HARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
lfotca to nna nciaJ s t a te ments for the year en d ed 3 1 / 03/2024 

Particulars I ~at 3 1 March , 2024 I I As ~t-~1 M11rch,-;023 

O u tstan dlnir for t he follow l n « perio d s from t h e due date o f the p o.vmcnt 
Particu la rs Not D ue Less t h an One vcar 11-2 vcars 

AIJ at Ma rc h , 3 1, 20'24 

Un1li, p111cd Micro n.nd Sm N I Entcrprfac~ (MS ME) 
2,185.43 1,116.16 34.51 

Undisputed oth ers 
2,732.90 142.54 18.76 

Dispu ted MSME 

Dis pu ted 0 1hcrs 

~ a t March , 31, 2023 

Unclispulccl Micro and S mal l Enlcf1>risc~ (MS ME) 
516.43 1,408.86 12.99 

Undi1>p\ltcd other~ 
3, 398 .79 386.60 9760 

Dispu ted MS ME 

Disputed Others 

Toh I 
2 1.l There nrc no trn111mction 11 with i! lrnc k o lT comprmies for the yciir e nd ing Mnrch 3 1, 2024 ond in Marc h 31, 2023 

2 1.2 The nbovc information hns been c om piled In respect or parllCIJ 10 the exte nt to whic h they could be identi fied ns Micro nnd Smnll 
Enterprlsrs on th e bAsis of informntion nvnilnble with the Comp.,ny 

2-3 YcRrs M ore t hnn 3 vcars Total 

3,336.09 

57.44 6.96 
2,958.60 

1,9311.211 

64.43 48.57 
3 ,995.99 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Note• to financial statemen ts for the year e nded 31/03/2024 

PartJculan 

Note -22 
Other Fln • ncla l llnbilitlcs : Curre n t 
Unclnimcd tlividcntls (•j 
Total 
22.l Amount''" the period FY 2015 · 2016 wns due ror credit to lnvc15tor Educt1tion ond Protection fund which is under proce ss nnd due dMe for credit to 
lnvc:stor Educn tion And Protection Fund wns 3rd December, 2023 

Note - 23 
Other curren t IJabilitics 
J\dvnncc from cu,.tomers 
Dues to Government AutJ10ritie!'l 
Emoloycc benefits Pavnblc 
Other nrovisions 
Tott.I 

Note - 24 
C u rrent tax liabilities 
Provision for l:t:< 
Total 

TT 
I I 

Aa Ill 31 Much, 2024 Aa •t 31 March, 2023 

3.84 33.19 
3 .84 33.19 

169.24 112.49 
100.46 76.34 
179.31 198.36 
110.52 71.34 

559.54 458.54 

553.50 l l 429.01 
553.SO 429.01 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to Standlone Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Particulars As at 31 March, 
As at 31 March, 2023 

2024 

Note - 25 
Revenue from ope ration s 
Sale of goods 34 ,657.69 27,434.17 
Tota l 34,657.69 27,434.17 

Note - 26 
Other ope rating reve nue:-
Other Income 157.93 33.39 
Total 157.93 33.39 

Note - 27 
Other Income 
Interest on:-

Interest Income 1.37 2.27 

Discount Received 1.64 0.01 

Dividend Income 0.00 0.05 

Misc. Other Income 7.04 12.61 

Net gain / loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations 71.91 138.5 1 

Rent Income 9.60 19 .20 

Claim Settlement Refund of Motor Car - 9.04 

Research & Development Charges - 0.50 

Total 91.57 182.19 

Note - 28 
Cos t of mate rial cons umed 

Material Consumed 28,24 1.83 24,556.66 
Total 28,241.83 24,556.66 

Note - 29 
Material Consumed for R & D 
Material Consumed 134. 19 83.48 
Total 134.19 83.48 

Note - 30 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work in progress 
Opening stock 
Finished goods / stock in trade 1,522. 18 327.33 
Work in progress 3,849.12 1,272.40 

Closing stock 
Finished goods / stock in trade 1,961.12 1,522. 18 
Work in progress 5,653.83 3 ,849.12 

Total -2,243.65 -3, 771.58 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to Standlone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 / 03 / 2024 

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 2023 
2024 

Note - 31 
Manufacturing & Service Cost 
Clearing & Forwarding Exp Inward - 0.33 
Electricity Expenses Factory 402 .53 316.56 
Factory Expenses 13.19 13 .75 
Freight Inward 8.48 13. 14 
Lab Chemical Expenses 18.05 14.47 
Labour Charges Expenses 640.48 374.79 
Laboratory Items 3.36 4.29 
Machinery Spares & Toos Exp. 46.90 53.70 
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 133.56 90.79 
Service Charges 16.29 9.74 
Testing & Analytical Expenses 32.23 26.49 
Loading & Unloading Expenses 9.44 8 .39 
Design Development Charges 0 .06 0.05 
Plate Making Charges 0 .97 1.07 
Transport Charges RCM 36.09 30.81 
Water Charges 0.02 0.04 
Total 1,361.65 958.41 

Note - 32 
Employee benefit expenses 
Gratuity 17.93 12.83 

Labour Welfare Fund Employers Contribution 0.29 0.09 

Bonus Expense 44.91 40.60 

Medical l!:xpenses 10.61 15.38 

P F Administration Charges 1.85 1.83 

ESIC 9.01 9. 16 

PF Employers Contribution 46.07 45.56 

Salary Wages 1,042.28 978.33 

Staff Welfare 77.03 50.52 

Total 1,249.98 1,154.30 

Note - 33 
Finance Cost 
Bank Charges 23.93 76. 18 
Interest on Term Loans 25 1.49 497.53 
Interest on Other Loans 1,000.30 258.65 
Finance Charges 89.29 95.79 
Total 1,365.01 928.15 

Note - 34 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Deoreciation and amortisation exoense 379.59 280.93 
Total 379.59 280.93 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to Standlone Financial Statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 March, 2023 
2024 

Note - 35 
Operating and other expenses 
Power & Fuel 44.02 20.19 

Rent 412.69 285.87 

Insurance 114.74 68.57 

Legal and Professional charges 335.30 213.42 

Commission expenses 250.03 32.44 

Business Development expenses 178.46 159.88 

Donation 0.11 0.75 

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 19.54 9.53 

Printing, Postage, Telephone and Communication expenses 69.67 35.30 

Rates, Taxes and Fees 225.58 243.11 

Repairs and Maintenance 

- For Machinery 33.18 35.28 

- For Others 41.27 47.38 

Advertisement expenses 110.02 9 .87 

Travelling and Conveyance expenses 105.74 120.35 

Director Sitting Fees 2.56 1.44 

Freight and Forwarding on Sales 218.57 254.49 

Bad Debts 1.57 2.53 

Other expenses 59.15 70.78 

Miscelleous expenses 41.19 87.36 

Total 2,263.39 1,698.54 

Notes: -
i) Pay ment to Auditors 

Audit fees 6.00 6.00 
Taxation matters 2.00 2.00 
Other matters 1.00 1.00 
Certification Charges 1.00 1.00 

Total 10.00 10.00 

Note - 36 
Earnings per equity share 
Calculation of weighted average number of equity s hares 
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of year 45.32 44.33 
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 46.99 45.32 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 46.42 44.78 
Earnings per equity share of continuing operations (of Rs. 10/- each) 

Profit after tax of continuing operations 1,562.34 1,080.66 
Basic Earning Per Share (in Rs.) 33.66 24.13 

Diluted Earnings per equity share 

Calcula tion of weighted average number of equity shares -
Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of year 45.32 44.33 
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 46.99 45.32 
Share Warrant issued which will be converted into potential equity share in ratio 1 
share warrant equals to 1 equity share. Therefore Number warrant issued 47500 
which will converted into 47500 equity shares 

0.48 2.34 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 47 47.13 
Diluted Earnings per equity share of continuing operations (of Rs. 10/ · each) 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to Standlone Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1 / 03 / 2024 

Particulars 
As at 3 1 March, 

As at 31 March, 2023 
2024 

Profit after tax of continuing operations 1,562 1,080.66 
Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 33.32 22.93 



Note - 37 Fklr Value Mcrururcmcnts 

Floa.ndal Instruments by Category 

FREDUR PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Balo.nee Sheet for the yeu ended 3 1/03/2024 
Rs. Jn Lakhs 

The following tnblc ~how~ the cnrrying nmounl8 n.nd fair vo.lues of fin ocif.ll assets nnd fin ancial liahilitics, including the ir levels in the fair value hicr;::1;rchy. It docs not include foir vn.Iur 

information for financial ~sscts and financial liabilities ir the carrying amount is a reasonable approximr\tion of fair value 

31-MM-24 

Fioa.nciaJ Asset. 
Security dcl)Osi1$ 

Investments I 
Trade and other 
Rcccivnblc 

C<Jsh and cnsh 
eauivnlcnts 
Other bank balance 
Loans 
Other financial nsscts 

Flaoc:IR.l Libllltle9 

I...ong tt::rms loa11s 
S hort te rms loans 

Trndc ond other pya.btes 

31· Mar·23 
Financial Assets 
Security deposits 
lnvcs1mcnts 

Trade nnd other 
Rcccivnb1c 
Cosh nnd cash 
cquivl'1cnls 

Ot.her b:mk b<'.'fancc 

Loans 
Other finan cial nssc ts 

FJanc lal Libillt.les 
Long terms loans 
Short l crms loans 

Trodc nnd other p_vablcs 

FVTPL FVTOCI 

80.80 

FVTPL FVTOCI 

30.80 

CMryiDR: Vnlue FaJr Value 

Amortised Cost Total Lcve l 1 Leve l 2 I I Level 3 T otal 

149.91 149.91 
80.80 80.80 80.80 

6,484.88 I 6,484.88 I I 

107.17 
107.17 1----------H 

27.85 27.85 

24.58 24.58 

339.68 339.68 

515. 11 
10.035.88 

6.294.69 

CarrvJo.r Value F ttlr Value 

Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 I I Level 3 Total 

Sl.16 51.16 
30.80 30.80 30.80 

3,478.69 
3.478.69 

294.6S 
294.65 
48.86 48.86 

15.05 IS.OS 
l.249.16 1.249.16 

4,892.87 4 ,892.87 
J,782.28 3,782.28 

5.936.34 5.936.34 

~ 



FaJ.r Va.Jue Hierarchy 

FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet for the year eod•d 3 1{03{2024 

The fair values of lhc financial assets anci liabilities a.re included al the amount Lhnt would be rt"crivrd to sell nn :is:sct or paid to trnnsfer a Jiabilit.v innn 
orderly transact ion betwccr1 market participants at the measurement date. 

This section cxplnins the judgements and estimates made in dctcnn.ining the fair values of the rinn.ncial instruments that arc (a) recognised and 
measured at fair value and (b) measured at a.mortised co~l and for which fair vnluc3 arc discloscci in the financial statements. To provide an indication 
nbout the rcl inbility of the input!'> used in determining fair value, the Company hns classified its linnncial instn1mcnts into the three Jcvels prcs<"tibed 
under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undcrnc:\th the t:\ble. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments m cnsurccl using quoted prices. The Company doesn't have investment in equity instn1mcnt.s 
that linvc quoted price. 

Level 2: The fair value of financiaJ instruments that arc n ot traded in an i:\Clivc mnrket is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the 

use of obsc-rvnble market dM::l nnd rely as litt.lc ns possible on entity-specific estimates. If all signific:ml inputs required to fair value nn instrument arc 
observnblc, the instrument is included in level 2. lnstrumcnts in the level 2 cotcgory for the Comon.ny include fon\lnrd exchange contr3ct derivatives 

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on ob~ervable market data. the instrumt"nt is included in this level. lnstruments in Jcvel 
3 catrgory for the Company include unquoted equity shMcs. 

Fair Value for Assets Measured a t Amortised Cost 
During the year::; mentioned obovc, there h~ve been no tra_nsfcrs amongst the lcvt'I~ of hicrurchy. 

The carrying nmounts of trade receivables, cosh and cash cquivn.lcnts, and other bank baJanccs. current lonns. other current finnnci~ a!;!;elS. current 
borrowings, lrndc p~yablcs and other financial liabilities arc considcr("d to be nppro,Om.,,tcly equal to the fair vnluc. 

VaJuatloo Process 
The Company cvnluntcs lhc fair vo.luc of financi al assets and financial liabilities on periodic basis using the best and most rclcvn.nt dMa availnble. 
Also, the Compnny internally cvnlul'ltes the v11luMion process nnd obtains independent price va.Jiclntion for ccrtnin instruments wherever neccssnry. 

Note - 38 Flnan.cla.1 Risk Manag~mcot 

The Company's nctivitics expose it to a variety of financial risk, including market risk, credit risk nnct liquidity risk. The company's primary risk mnnngemcnt focus is to minimi7.c potential 
odvcrse effect of market risk on its financial performance. The Comnpan;"s risk man.igement assessment. polic ies and process arc cst:ihlisht'cl to icl<'ntify :md Mnlyzc lhr risk fnC'<'cl by thc­
com::ipny, to set nppropriate ri~k limits and control$, and to monitor such risks nnd compliance with th<" same. l{isk Assessment :ind management polic ies and process arc reviewed 
regu larly to rcncc::t changes in market conditions nnd the com::.pany's activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the company·s ri:;;k 
osscssmcnt ond management policies and proee::iscs 

FlnnnclN risk maoagemeo t 

The company has exposure to the followin~ risk~ arising from financial instruments 

I Credit r isk 
2 Liquidity r isk and 
J Market ris k 

Credit r isk 
Credi t risk is the risk of finunc:in11oss to the comp:).ny if a customer or counter pn.rty to a financinJ instrument fails to meet its contrnctual oblig<l.tions, nnd ari:->cs pricipnlly 
from the comp::my's receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed thro1.1gh credit npprovnls, establishing credit limits nnd continously monitoring the creditworlhiricss 
of customers to which the company grants credit terms in normal course of business. The comp:my estRblishes ru1 allow:\nCe for doubtful cl<'bts m1cl impairment th:1ts 
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other rcecivabks nnd investments 

including the cl<·fnu_lt ~i~k 
I ' ofth<"customcr,. als cstnbhsahmg tomer. The demograp lies d through crecht approv ..... . I' 'dual charrnctcrist ic o~ N\Ch c~:mcnt. Crcdil risk is manormgc~ll course of business. . the m e'"' • it nsk nsse. in the no • Trade nnd e ther recelva~::redit risk is influenced ;~~:~sb:iso ha• an influcne~.;~ ~~~dcompan,v grants credit terms ~71 "" wme-»• ~~"" · _,;,. lli""'""" 0 ~.,.;,,. o< w"'•••• <ow ' · I 

. dustry nnd coun try m "t ring the cred1twor i 

°'"''" " .... -.. < credit limits ond con nu 

~ 



i;i 

A 

Expected c re dit loss assess.men t 

FREDUl'I FHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet fo r the ye11r coded 31/03/2024 

Exposure to customers outstanding ot thc end of each reporting period arc rcvi('w("d by the company to determine and c,;pcctcd credit losses. Historicf't.l trends of impairrn~nt 
of trade.~ r cccivnblcs <lo not rcncct uny significnnl credit Jo3scs. Given that the mnrro economic indicators affecting customers of the company have not undergone any 
substantiaJ change, the company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue. Further, management believes that the unimp:.lircd amounts that arc past 
due by more than 30 <ln.vs arc still collectible in fuU. based on historical payment lxhaviour and C."(tcnsion an~lysis of customer credit risk. The impairment Joss :i:t 31 MnrC'h, 
2024 related to scvcrol customers th:.it have defaulted on their p<"ymcnts lo the comnpnJ ~nd arc not expected to be able to pAy their outstanding balances, mninly dur to 
economic circustanccs. 

ClUlh and cash e quivalents 

As on 31 March, 2024 the comprmy held cash and cash cqivalents and other bnnk balances wilh credit worthy banks and finruicial institutions of Rs. 107 .17 /- (31 Mnrch. 
2023 Rs. 294.65 / -).The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is rvaluted by the managcm<'nt on an ongoing basis nnd is considered to be goo<l. 

Liquidity r isk 

Liqu id ity risk is the risk that the company wlll not be able to meet its financial oblip,ations ns they become due. The compnny manages its liquidity rislc by ensuring. ns far as 
possible, that it will ah..,ays have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilj tics when due. undc- both normal and strcssrd conditions. without incurring unncccpt:ible losses or risk 
to lhc company's repu tation 

The Company manages i ts liquidity risk by regularly monitoring its rolling cash flow forecasts. The Company's operntions provide a naturn.I 
liquidity or rccrivaUles agninsl payments due lo creditors. Borrowings nrc managc<I through credit fricilitics agreed with the Banks, internal 
accruals nnd rcnlisation or liquid nsscfs. In the event of cosh shortfalls, the Company npproachcs the lenders for a suitable term extension 

Prutlcu1n..rs As at 3 1 Mnrch, 2024 As a t 31 Mnrch, 2023 

Current Ass<'ls 25,719.95 21,621.11 
Current Li;lbilitics 17,447.45 13,965.67 
Net Exposure 8,272.49 7,655.44 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk or loss of future earnings, fair valueR or fu ture cosh flows thot m<ty rcRult from adverse chnnges in market rntcs a nd prices (such as iritcrc-st r~tcs. 
foreign currency exchanges rates) or in the prices of market risk - sensit ive instruments ~s as resu lt of such a<lvcrsc changes in market rntes and prices. M;:trkC'l risk is 
attributable to all market risk - sensitive fin::mcin.I instruments, all foreign currency rccei\.ablcs and pay:.bles and all short term and long - term dC'bl. The Com:ipny is 
e,.;poscd to market risk primarily rclotcd to foreign exchMge rate risk, interest rnte risk and the markel va.lue or its investments. Thus. the Comapny's exposure to mark('t 
risk is a fun ct ion of investing <"nd borrowing activities and revenue gcnrrn ting ~nd operntmr. nctivitics in foreign currencies 

Currency rJsk 
ThC" nuctuations in foreign currency exchanges rates may hnve potential impact on the profit and Toss :xcount. where ""Y ln:msRction references more han one currency or where 
assets/laibili tics are denominated in o currency other than the functionnl currency of the entity 

Considt"'ring the countries n.nd economic environment in which the compnny operates, its operations nrc subject to risks arising from fluctuntions in rxch:ingc rntcs in tho~r countric~. 
The risks primnrily rd::1tc to fluctuations in USO gAjnst the rc.-spcctive function~ currency of the comp:iny. 

As of Mnrch 31, 2024, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk, expressed in JNR, is given in lhc tnblc bclo\v. The amounts represent only the lina ne.ial assets and li:ibilitiC's that 
<U"C denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company. 

Exposure to USD expressed Jo R s. 

Financial lnstnaments 
As nt 31 March~ 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

Trade receivable 2.3%.33 1,489.73 

Trade Payable 
Net exposure to foreip c urrency risk 2.396.33 1.489.73 



B Interest rate ris k 

, FREDUl'I PHARMACEUTICALS LIMIT ED 
Balance Sheet for the yelU' ended 31/03/2024 

Interest rate risk is the risk thot thc fai r value or ruturc ca.sh Oows of a financial instrument will fluctuate b~causc or changes in market interest rutcs. 

Pnrticu1n.rs As a t 3 1 March, 202 4 A• at 31 March, 2023 
fA) Borrowin~ at Flontinf' interest rate 

Borrowinp,s 515.11 1,544.00 
Current Maturities of Non·Currcnt Borrowings 10,035.88 7,110.65 

Total Bonowiog at Float.log In t e r est rato (A) 10,550.99 8,654.65 
tD~ Borrowings Rt Fixed In t e r est rRte 

Current Oorrowing 

Total Borrowing at Fixed Inte re st rate (B' . . 
Total Borrowings (A+B) 10,550.99 8,654.65 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 / 03/ 202 4 

Note· 39 
Related party relationships , transaction and bal ances 

The table pro,•ides the infonnation about thr Group's struc1urc including J.;e, Management Personnel and Business Organisa11on controlled b~ J.;c~ ~lanagcmcnt 

Personnel or their rcll'l1ives. Th e follO\\ing rnble provides thr total amount of transaction thal h11vc been entered into "ith rcla1ed panies for 1hc relevant financial 
year 

A. Related parties and n ature of relationship where control e><ist (upto 31 March, 2024) 
Key Management Personnel : 

Sr. No Name De signation 
1 Mr. Fredun Nariman Medhora Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer) 
2 Dr. Mrs. Da ulat Nariman Medhora Chairperson and Jt. Managing Director 
3 Mr. Nariman Bamansha Medhora Non · Executive Director 
4 Dr. Mr. Aspi Raimalwala Non · Executive Independent Director 
5 Dr. Mr. Rohinton Kanga Non - Executive Independent Director 
6 Daisy Dsouza Non - Executive Independent Director 
7 Ms. Jinka l Shah Com pa nv Secretary 

B. Ente rprises Significantly influenced by Directors and / or their relatives with whom transaction have t aken place : 

Sr. No Name of Entitv 
1 Fredun Healthcare Private Limited 
2 Trois Biotech Private Limited 
3 Fredna Enterprise Private Limited 
4 Fredna Dental System Pri\•ate Limited 
5 FR Freiya Lifestyle Private Limited 
6 SF Partner and Consultants Pvt Ltd 
7 Fredpack Industries Private Limited 
8 Albrroz Wellbeing Private Limited 
9 Zane's Hospitality & Pet Soa Private Limited 
10 lteeha Hospitality & En tertainment Private Limited 
ll Munro School Private Limited 
12 Fredna Enterprise 
13 lnnovus Healthcare L.L.C 
14 Fredun Foundation 

Details of transactions entered into with the related parties for the relevant flnancial year 
Transaction For the Year Ended For the Year 

Name March-3 1,2 024 Ended March· 
3 1,2023 

Director Remuneration 12 .00 12.00 

Dr. Mrs. Daulat N. Medora Rent 1.02 1.00 
Interest on Loan 4 .09 6.69 
Director Sittine: Fees 

Director Remuneration 

Mr. Nariman B. Medhora Rent 2 .25 2.16 
Interest on Loan 9.10 12.23 
Director Sittin£ Fees 

-
Director Remuneration 54.00 54.00 

Mr. Fredun N. Medhora Rent 3.03 2 .93 
Interest on Loan 12.55 18.65 
Director Slttinr; Fees -

Aspi N Raimalwala Director Slttinr; F ees 1.12 

Chandrakant Kanchanlal Shah Director Sitting Fees 0 .16 

Rohinton Adi Kanga Director Sitting Fees 1.12 

Daisy D'souza Director Slttinr; Fees 0 .1 6 

Fredun Healthcare Private Limite d Purchase 49.79 

I Sales 27 .99 34.95 

Rent 168.00 115.20 

I 
Fredna Enterprises Sales 0.17 

Purchase 999.88 336.37 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financ ial statements for the year ended 31 / 03 /2024 

Sales 2,442.84 

I 
Fredna Dental Systems Pvt Ltd Purchase 1.11 -

Rent 9.60 22.66 

Sale 55.77 

I Trois Biotech Pvt. Ltd 
Purchase 

Innovus Healthcare L.L.C 
Sale 641.48 -
Purchase 0 .87 

Balances Outstandine: as at March-31 -2024 with related parties were as follows: 
Transaction For the Year Ended For the Year 

March-31,2024 Ended March· 
Name 31,2023 

Director Remuneration 42.61 32.38 
Dr. Mrs Daulat N. Medhora Rent 1.83 4.86 

Directors Loan 37.14 28.17 

Director Remuneration -
Mr. Nariman B. Medhora Rent 1.34 1.06 

Directors Loan 82.61 76.57 

Director Remuneration 3 .29 36.81 
Mr. Fredun N. Medhora Rent 0 .29 2.36 

Directors Loan 379.87 85.80 

Fredna Enterprises 
Payable - - I Rent D eposit Given 27.75 27.75 

Innovus Healthcare L.L.C 
Payable - -
Receivable 376.50 317.62 

Note · 40 
Se2:ment re-portine- and Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 "Revenue from customers:" 
Operating segment arc components of the Group whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ICODM) 
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. 
Pharmaceuticals is identified as single operating segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing its performance. 

Disa1te:ree:ation of revenue into operatine: segme nts and e:eoe:raphical areas for the vear ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 
Domestic Export Domestic Export 

Revenue from operations 26,886.32 7,771.37 21 ,231.0 8 6,203.09 
Total 26,886.32 7,771.37 21,23 1.08 6,203.09 

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 
Domestic Imports Domestic Imports 

Purchase 28,677.73 89.95 31,182.25 52.66 
Tot al 28,677.73 89.95 31,182.25 52.66 

• Revenu e information above Is based on t h e locations of the customers 

Note - 41 
Events after the Reporting Period: 

1. There are n o significant s ubsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date except Point 
No 2 below. 

2. The proposed dividend of Rs. 0.70 per Share is recommended by the Board which is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting . 

Note - 42 
Figures For the previous year have been re-grouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary to conform current year's da ssiflcation. 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31/03/2024 

Note· 43 
Dues to micro and small enterprise 

The disclosu re pursu11nt 10 t11c Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Art, 2006, (MSMED Act) for dues to micro enterprises 
and small enterprises as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as under: 

As at March, 2024 As at March, 2023 
Dues remaining unpaid to any supplier 

Principal 

Interest on the Above 

Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, 

along with the amount of the payment made lo the supplier beyond the 

appointed day during each accounting year 

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 

year) but without adding the interest specified under tlle MSMED Act, 2006 

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006 

1,938.28 1,938.28 

9.09 



44. Provisions & Contingent Liabilities 

Accounting Policy 

Contingent liability is a possible o bligaUon arising from past event s and whosr existence will br confun1ed onlv by the occun·cnce or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncen.ain future events not wholly \\ithin the con!Iol of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not 
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount 
of the obligation cannot be m easured \\ith s ufficient reliability. 

45. Capital Commitments 

The company does not have any capital commitments as at 3 1st March, 2024 

46. N on-cancellable Operating Leases 

The Company h as taken various residential / office premises/factory godowns under operating lease or leave and license agreement "~th no resuictions 
a nd are renewable/ cancellable al tJ1e option of either of the parties. There arc no sub-leases. The lease payments recognised under "Rent Expenses" 
a re: 

Rental expense relating to Operating Leases 

Pa rticulars 
Year e nded Year ended 

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023 

RENT EXPENSE 404.49 278.10 

Total rental expense relating to Operating Leases 404.49 278. 10 

47. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Particula rs Year ended Year ended 
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023 

A. Basic Earnings Per Share 
i. Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders 1,562.34 1,080.66 
ii. Weighted average number of Equity Shares 

46.42 44.78 
Outstanding (Nos.) 

Basic and Diluted EPS (Rs) (i) / (ii) 33.66 24. 13 

48. Capital Management 

The company's objective while managing capital are. 

I. Safeguard its ability to continue a s a going concern 
2. Maintain an optima l mix of debt and capital to reduce overall cost of ca pital 
3. Provide adequate returns to shareholders 

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding 
excessive leverage. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the 
risk characteristics of the underlying asset s 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023 
Gross Debt 18,199.14 15,706.07 
Less: Cash a nd cash equivalents 107. 17 294.65 
Net debt 18,091.97 15,411.42 
Total Equity 12 ,147.12 9,637.57 
Net debt to equity ratio 1.49 1.60 



Note No. 49 
Employee Benefit Obligations 

(Rs. Lakh•I 

Partlcult\t's 
As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

Current Non Current Current Non Current 
Gratuity (unfunded) 14.32 101.89 10.96 88.76 
Total 14.32 101.89 10.96 88 .76 

(I) Leave Obligations 

The lc'1ve obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and earned leave. The amount of the provision of Rs.120.37 / - lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 96.69/- lakhs) is presented as non 
current liabilities, since the Company does not have an unconditional r ight lo defer settlement for any of these obl igations. However, based on past experience, the Company docs not 
expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the ncxt 12 months. 

(II) Post-Employment Obligations 
Gratuity 

The Company provides for gratuity for rmployees in India as per lhc Payment of Grntuity Ael, I <l72. Employees who arc in continuous service for a period of 5 years arc clii:iblr for 
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on rcliremcnl/ l ermination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportioMlely multiplied for the number of years 
of service ns per the Scheme . 

(Ill) Defined Contrlbntlons Plans 

The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions arc made to provident fund in India for employees al the rate of 12% of basic salnry as per regulat ions. The 
contributions arc made to registered provident rund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed And it ha~ no fu rtf1er 
contractual nor any constructive obligation. Amount recognized as an expense during the period towards defined contribution plan is Rs.46.07 / -(March 31, 2023 R•.47.39/- 1. 

De tail.• of Gratuity 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined Benefi t s obligation ewer the year arc as follows: 

Partlcnlars 

As at lat April 
Interest Expcnsc/(lncomc) 
Current Service Cosl 
Total Amount recognlzcd ln Profit and Loss 

Total amount re cognised in Other 
Com.prehensive Inc ome 
Total 

The signific.-mt actuarial assumptions were as follows: 

Total 

ttritlon rate 
For service 2 ycnrs and below 
'or scrvice.3 ycnrs to 4 years 

,r service 5 years and above 
escalation rate 

As at 31st March, 
2024 

Present 
Value oC 

Obligation 

7 .39 
10.55 

17.93 

7.04 
24.98 

As at 31st March, 
2023 

Present 
Value of 

Obllgation 

6 .73 
10.83 

17.56 

-4.92 
12.64 

As at 3 1 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023 

7.20% P.A 

28.00% P.A 
11.00% P.A 
7.00% P.A 
5.00% P.I\ 

7 .41 o/o P./\ 

28.00% P.A 
I J.00% P.A 
7.00% P.A 
5.00% P.A 



Additional Details 

Me t.hodology Adopte d for A••nre d Life Mortality (ALM) Projected Unit Credit Methocl 
Details of Funding Unfunded 

Risk exposure and Asset Liability M a.tchJug 

Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed hereunder, as compnnics take on uncertain long term obligations to make future benefit payments. 

1. Liability Risks 
a. Asset-l iability Mismatch Risk -

Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabil ities. By matching duration wi th the defined benefit liabilities. the Company i s successfully abk 
to neutralize valuation swings cau sed by interest rate movements. Hence companies arc cncoumgcd to adopt asset-liability manngcmenl. 

b. Discount Rate Risk -

Var iations in the d iscount rate used lo compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small. but in practice can have a significant impact on the defined brncfit tiabilitirs. 

c. future Salary t>scalalion and Inflation Risk -
Since price inflation and salary growth are l inked economically, they arc combined for disclosurr purposes. Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit P"ymcnts 
resulting in a higher present value or liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainties i n estimating this increasing risk. 

2. Unfunded Plan Risk 

This represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is nn inherent risk here that the Company may default on paying the benefits in <tdvcrse circumstances. F'unding the plan 
removes volatility in company's financials and al!'-;o bcncrit risk through relum on the funds m;:ide nvRiln:blc for the plan. 



Note No.SO 
Reconclllntlon of Accounting Profit & Tax Expenses 

Pa rtlculnrs 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Reconciliation of tBlt expense and accounting profit multiplied by tBlt rate applicable In 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

Mnrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Profit rrom Operations Before Income Tax Expense 2.145.19 1,750.85 
Comorale Ta.~ Rate as per Income Tax /\cl, 1961 25.J68% 25.168% 
TBlt on Accounting profit 539.90 I 440.65 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to 
reported income tax expense 

Non-dcducbblc expenses for lru< purpose 30.23 26.38 
Other Items 77.34 5.17 

Income tax expense 647.47 472.20 

Deferred Tnx Asset (Net) 

The balance comprises temporary differe nces atliibutable to : 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Deferred T ax Asset: 
Tax losses -
Defined Ocncfits obligations 
Gratuity 
U:avc Encashment -
Ml\T credit cntitJcmcnl - -
OtJ1cr Items 

l\llownncc of Expected Credit 1.,oss on Trade Rcccivnblcs -
Allowance of doubtful debts· security deposits 
OU1ers -

Total Deferred Talt Assets - . 

Deferred TBlt Liabilities: 

~ 
Property Pliml and Equ ipment and Intangible l\sscts 29.35 241.18 

Finan cial Assets at Frur Value Through Profit and Loss 

~ Others 
l;rotal Deferred Talt Liabilities 29.35 241.18 ., 
~ 

l~ 
I 

~ 

.... 
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Movement In Deferred Tax Assets 

Particulars Tax losses 
Defined Benefits MAT Credit 

Other Items 
Total Deferred Ta>< 

Obligations Entitlement Asset. 
As nt April 1, 2023 

(Chargcd)/creditccl : 
to Pror.t and loss . . 
to 0U1cr comorchcnsivc income . 

As at March 31, 2024 . 

Movem ent In Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Particulars 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Financial assets nt Fair Value through Profit Total Deferred Tax 

Assets and Loss Liabilities 
As at April 1, 2023 
(Chnrgcd)/creditcd : 

lo Profit and loss -29 -29.35 

to 01J1cr comprehensive income 
. 

As at March 31, 2024 -29.35 . -29.35 



Not_!> :- 51 Ratios 

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 Variance 

Current Ratio ( In Times) Current assets c urrent liabilities 1.47 2.04 -0.57 

Debt - Equity Ratio( Jn Times) Tota l Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.87 0.90 -0.03 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio ( Jn Earnings available for 
Times) debt service Debt Service 0.33 0.31 0.02 

Return on Equity (ROE) Net Profits after Truces S ha reholders's Equity 13% 11% 2% 

Trade receivables turnover Avarage Trade 
ratio( In Times) Revenue Receivables 4.22 3.44 0.78 

Trade payables turnover ra t io ( Purchases and Average Trade 
In Times) expenses Payables 3.59 3.40 0.19 

Net Capital turnover ratio (In Revenue 
Times) Working Capital 4.22 2.51 1.71 

Net Profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 4.48% 3.91% 0.57% 

Return on capita l employed Earning before 
(ROCE) interest and truces Capital Em ployed 28.90% 27.80% 0.011 

- .:::-... ,, 
~~~urnover Ratio ( In Cos t of Average 

A" Cos t of Goods Sold Inventory 1.74 2.51 -0.77 

~ .fr~ '\ 'I'' ··- ~\ ~ 
~ . ""I?>,.'() ~ 

~ 't? /~ I.> .../ • .._.._,,, 
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Note :- 52 Corporate Social Responsibility 

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2 % of its average net 
profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) act ivities. The areas for CSR activities are 
eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, hea lthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment 
sustainability, disaster re lief, COVI0-19 relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee bas been formed by the company as per the Act. 
The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified iD Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013: 

Particul ars 

I) Amount required 10 be spent by the company during the year 

21 Amount of expenditure incurred 

31 Shortfall at the end of the year 

4 I Total of previous years shortfall 

5) Reason for shortfall 

6) Nature of CSR activities 

7) Details of related pany transactions cg. Contribution to a trust controlled by the company in 
relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting standard 

8) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual 
obligations, the movements in the prov1s1ons 

Note · 53 

As at 
March, 31 2024 

19.54 

19.54 

N/A 

March, 31 2023 

9.53 

N/ A 

9.53 

N/A 

The suitable project for 
CSR spending is in process 
of finalization by the CSR 
committee and company 
believes that the required 
amount will be spent 
against CSR activities up 
to September, 2023 and 
provision for the same has 
been provided in the books 
of accounts. 

Eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting 
education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and 
rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief 
and rural development projects 

NA NA 

NA NA 

There are no Bcnami properties held by the Company. Also, there has been no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding any benami property under the Benarni Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

Note· 54 
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Vinual currency during the financials year. 

Note· 55 
There arc no transactions which are recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

Note· 56 

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other source of funds) 
10 other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide a'ly 
guarantee, security or like on or behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries . 

The Company has not received any funds from any person(sl or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding whether 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
provide any guarantee, security or like on or behalf of the Funding Pany (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or like on or behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

Note - 57 
The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance \\ith a resolution passed of the Board of Directors in its 
meeting h eld on May 07, 2024. 

Note - 58 
The company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 10 registered with ROC beyond statutol)· period 

Note - 59 
Each entity in the Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 

Not e· 60 



F'REDU" PMARMACEUTICAl.S l.IMITED 
Gompassionale Jfeal!.hcare 

CIN No: L24239MH1987PLC043662 
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Amount in Lakhs 

As at As at 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03 .2023 

A ASSETS 
1) Non-current assets 

(a) Property , Plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work in Progress 

(c) Financial Assets 
1) Loans 

2) Other financial assets 
3) Other lntengible Assets 

(ct) Non - Current Investment 
(e) Other non current assets 

Sub-tot al - Non-current assets 

2) Current assets 
(a) Inventories 

(b) Financial assets 
(1) Investments 

(2) Trade and other receivable 
(3) Cash and cash equivalents 

(4) Bank Balance Other Than 3 above 
(5) Loans 

(6) Other financial assets 
(c) Other current Assets 

Sub-total - Current a ssets 

TOT AL - ASSETS 

B EQUITY & LIABILITIES 

1 Sha reholders ' Funds 
a) Equity Share Capital 
b) Other t:qu1ty 

Sub-total - Shareholders' Funds 

2 Share application money pending allotment 
3 Non Current Liabilities 

a) Borrowings 

b ) Provisions 

c) Other non- Current liabilities 
ct) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Sub-total - Non Current Liabilities 

4 Current Liabilities 

a) Financial Liabilities 
1) Borrowings 
2) Trade Payables 

3) Other Financial Liabilities 

b) Other Current Liabilities 
c) Short term provisions 
ct) Current tax liabilities ( Net) 

Sub-total · Curren t Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

PLACE : MUMBAI 

DATE: 07.05.2024 

461 5 .32 3862.57 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 
196.20 51.16 
41.95 30.78 

0.28 0.28 
186.24 162.05 

5039.97 4106.84 

17499.80 15012.36 
0.00 0.00 

80.80 30.80 
6484.88 3456.03 

107. 17 294.65 
27.85 48.86 
24.58 15.05 

339.68 1250.66 

1155.19 1512.69 
25719.95 21621.1 1 
30759.91 25727.95 

469.92 453.23 
11677.20 9184.35 
12147.12 9637.57 

- -

1279.81 1544.00 
236.58 196.41 

0.00 0 .00 

413.65 384.30 

1930.04 2124.71 

9271.18 71 10.65 

6294.69 5934.27 
3.84 33.19 

559.54 458.54 

0.00 0.00 
553.50 429.0 1 

16682.75 13965.67 

30759.91 25727.95 

Registered Office: Urmi Estate, 11th Floor, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai -400013. 
Phone No.: 91-22- 4031 8111 Fax: 91 -22-4031 8133 

Factory: 14, 15, 16, Zorabian Industrial Complex, Vevoor, Palghar (E), Dist: Palghar - 401 404. 
Phone No.: +917045957828, +917045957829, +917045957830, +917045956857 

E-Mail: business@fredungroup.com Web: www.fredungroup.com 



FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 

F.Y. 2023-2024 F.Y. 2022-2023 

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

NET PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 1,562.34 1,075.74 

ADJUSTMENTS FOR : 

DEPRECIATION 379.59 280.93 

INTEREST PAID 1,365.0 1 928.15 

INTEREST RECEIVED 1.37 2.27 

CREDITORS WRITTEN BACK -69.33 -41.40 

1,676.64 1,169.95 

3,238.98 2,245.69 

ADJUSTMENT TO OPERATING PROFIT 

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

DEFFERED TAX LIABILITY 29.35 241.18 

ADJ USTMENT FOR PROPOSED DIVIDEND TAX 

ADJUSTMENT FOR TAX PROVISION 553.50 429.0 1 

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 3,821.83 2,915.88 

EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS 

INCREASE I DECREASE IN :-

INVENTORY -2,487.43 -10,366.35 

INVESTMENTS -50.00 -25.00 

TRADE RECEIVABLES -3,028.85 5,571.30 

LOANS & ADVANCES -9.53 -6.12 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS -604.50 -220.40 

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 910.98 -1, 173.24 

OTHSR FINANCIAL ASSETS - 145.03 23.65 

TRADE PAYABLES 360.42 1,072.61 

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 101.00 -698.56 

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS -24.18 -37.05 

OTHER NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES -29.35 

SHORT TERM PROVISION 

PROVISION FOR TAX 124.48 -279.06 

RESERVES & SURPLUS 9 76 .12 1,755.77 

SHARE PREMIUM !RESERVES & SURPLUS) -3,905.87 -4,382.47 

-84.04 - 1,466.58 

INCREASE I DECREASE IN :-

LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 

LONG TERM PROVISIONS 40.17 25.70 

40.17 25.70 

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPE RATING ACTIVIT IES -43.87 -1,440.88 

EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN NON CURRENT ITEMS 

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

NET ADJUSTED CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
-43.87 - 1,440.88 



B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

PURCI IASE OF FIXED ASSETS 

SAl,E OF FIXED ASSETS 

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

INCREASE/ DECREASE IN ISSUE OF SHARE CAPITA!, 

INCREASE/ DECREASE IN LONG TERM BORROWINGS 

INCREASE / DECREASE IN SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

INTEREST RECEIVED 

INTEREST PAID 

CREDITORS WRITTEN BACK 

NET INCREASE / DECREASE IN CASH 

OPENING CASH & BANK BAl-ANCE 

CLOSING CASH & BANK BALANCE 

For RH Nlsar & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No - 120895W 

he.: 
Proprietor 
Membership No · 103659 
UDIN No.: 24103659BKCQEl69 

Place - Mumbai 
Date :- 07th-May,2024 

-763.91 

-763.91 

-807.79 

-264.19 

2 ,160.53 

-1.37 

-1,365.01 

69.33 

599.30 

-208.49 

343.51 

135.02 

For and on behalf of 
the Board of 

CIN No· L24239MH1987PLC043662 

For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 

~~ 

-949.46 

9.01 

688.93 

2,717.75 

-2.27 

-928.15 

41.40 

Dr. (Mrs) Daulat N. Medhora Mr. Fre dun N. Me dhora 

Joint Managing Director 
DIN : 01745277 

-940.45 

-2,381.34 

2,517.67 

136.33 

207.18 

343.51 

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 on "Statement of Cash Flow". 

2 Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and not bifurcated between investing and financing activities. 

3 Figures in Bracket sign indicate cash outflow. 

4 Previous year figures have been regrouped & recast, wherever necessary, to confonn to the current year's classification. 



R.H.Nisar & Co. 
Chartered Accountant 

4, Vrindavan Building, Aarey Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063 
Tel no : 2686 9939, 2686 9940 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 

I. Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

1. Opinion 

We h ave audited the accompanying Financial Statements of FREDUN 
PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (includin g 
comprehensive income), Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes 
in Equity for the year then ended and summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, (herein referred to as "Standalone 
Financial Statements") 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to u s, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as a t March 3 1, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date 

2 . Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs) . 
Our respon sibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalon e Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independen ce requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder , and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit eviden ce we have obtained is sufficient and 



R.H.Nisar & Co. 
Chartered Accountant 

4, Vrindavan Building, Aarey Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063 
Tel no: 2686 9939, 2686 9940 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial 
Statements. 

3. Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and 
Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures 
to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Standalone Financial 
Statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone 
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Financial Statements 
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
b e materially misstated. If, based on the work we h ave performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

4. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India . This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 



R.H.Nisar & Co. 
Chartered Accountant 

4, Vrindavan Bui1ding, Aarey Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063 
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In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible 
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alten1ative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 

5. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
Standalone Financial Statements are free from m aterial misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements . 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs specified under section 143(10), 
we exercise professional judgmen t and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statem ents, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud m ay involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresen tation s, or the override of internal 
control. 

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act , we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company h as adequate internal 
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financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the gomg 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial 
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

II. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of ou r knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
March 3 1, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequ acy of the intern al financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

-'!:.~~~ g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
~\S~'!. ~ ccordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act , as amended: 
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In our oplllion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20 14, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 
financial position in its Financial Statements. 

11. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

m. There has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be 
tr an sf erred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. The Company was required under section 124 (1) and 124 (6) 
of the Act to transfer its dividend and equity shares, where the dividend 
is not claimed for last seven years to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund for financial year 20 15-16, however there is a delay in tr an sf er of 
dividend and equity shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
the due date of transfer was 3rd December, 2023 but the same is not 
transferred as on balance sheet date. 

1v. a) The Management has r epr esented that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity , including 
foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
wh ether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material eith er 
individually or in the aggregate) h ave been received by the Company 
from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding 
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Parties") , with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall , whether , directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and 
(b) above, contain any m aterial misstatemen t. 

v . As stated in note no - 41 of the standalone financial statements, 

a ) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and 
paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with 
Section 123 of the Act, as applicable 

b) The Board of Directors of the Company h ave proposed final 
dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the 
m embers at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of 
dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as 
applicable. 

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company 
has used accounting Softwares for maintaining its books of account 
for the financial year ended March 3 1, 2024 which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year except for two days in a year ie - 01.04.2023 
and 02.04.2023 and for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
Softwares. Further , during the course of our audit we did not come 
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule ll(g) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 2014 on preservation of audit 
trail a s per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by 
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 7 th May, 2024 

For R H NISAR & CO 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Firm Registration No - 120895W 

RAKESH NISAR 

(PROPRIETOR) 

Membership No.: 103659 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of Fredun Pharmaceuticals 
Limited of even date} 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FREDUN 
PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management's Respons ibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
('ICAI'}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records , and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
20 13. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an op1mon on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

~~=::!!k..- ontrols over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
trols operated effectively in all materialrespects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial repor ting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
r eporting included obtainin g an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial repor ting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists , and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor 's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatem ent of the financial 
s tatem ents, whether due to fra ud or error. 

We believe th at the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial con trol over financial reporting is a process designed 
to provide reason able assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
th e preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records tha t, in reasona ble detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as n ecessary to permit 
prepara tion of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance r egarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, u se, or disposition of the company's assets 
that could have a m aterial effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material m isstatements due to error or fraud m ay occur and not be 
detected . Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial r eporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting m ay become inadequate becau se of 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or 



R.H.Nisar & Co. 
Chartered Accountant 

4, Vrindavan Building, Aarey Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063 
Tel no: 2686 9939, 2686 9940 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system except for recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 
same has operated throughout the year except for two days in a year over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 7 th May, 2024 

For R H NISAR & CO 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Firm Registration No - 120895W 

RAKESH NISAR 

(PROPRIETOR) 

Membership No.: 103659 
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ANNEXURE 'B, TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,$ REPORT 

(Ref erred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of Fredun Pharmaceuticals 
Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by 
the Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal 
course of audit, we state that: 

(i) Fixed Assets 
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

(b) During the year, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the company have 
been physically verified by the management as per the regular programme 
of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the company and the n ature of its assets. As informed, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of all the 
immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the 
lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) 
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including the right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against 
the Company as at March 31, 2024 for h olding any benami property under 
the Ben ami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and 
rule made thereunder. 

(ii) Inventories 
(a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the 

management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. 
(b) Based on our examination of the records of inventory, we are of the opinion 

that the company is maintaining proper records of inventory. 
(c) During the year no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate of each 

class of inventory were noticed. 
(d) The company has sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 

crores, in aggregate, at any points of the time during year, from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 
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(e) The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with financial 
institutions or banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the 
company. 

(iii) Details of investments, any guarantee or security or advances or loans given 

(a) The Company h as not provided any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during 
the year, and h en ce reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not 
applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, the investments m a de and the terms and conditions of the 
grants of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 
company's interest. 

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of 
principal and paym ent of interest has been stipulated and the repayments 
of principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as 
per stipulation. 

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount 
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet dat e. 

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has 
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of 
existing loans given to the same parties. 

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans 
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not 
applicable. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of 
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 
of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of Companies Act 
and the Rules framed there under. Hence the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) 
Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not 
applicable. 

We h ave broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in 
-""'~~~-.. espect of products where the maintenance of cost records has been specified by 

Central Government under sub - section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the 
s framed there under and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the 
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prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. However, we have not 
made detailed examination of cost records with a view to determine whether they 
are accurate or complete. 

(vii) Statutory Dues 
(a) According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in 

depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service 
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable 
to it. 

(b) According to the records of the company, there are no dues of income tax of 
sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added 
tax, Goods and Service tax which has not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that 
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) 

(ix) 
a) Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given 

by the management, we are of the opinion that the company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank, 
Government or dues to debenture holders 

b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institutions or government or any government authority 

c) The term loans taken by the Company during the year were applied for the 
purpose for which loans were obtained. 

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 
raised on short terms basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year 
for long term purposes by the company. 

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the 
Company do not have Subsidiaries Company during the year and hence 
reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable. 

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting 
on clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable. 



(x) 

(xi) 

R.H.Nisar & Co. 
Chartered Accountant 

4, Vrindavan Building, Aarey Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063 
Tel no: 2686 9939, 2686 9940 

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting 
under clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable. 

b) The Company has made preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the 
year and the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 
2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the 
purposes for which the funds were raised. 

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year 

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and 
upto the date of this report. 

c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year (and upto the date of this report), while 
determining the nature, timings and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and reporting under clause(xii) of the 
order is not applicable 

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of 

(xiv) 

the Companies Act, 20 13 with respect to applicable transactions with the 
related parties and the d etails of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

a) In our op1mon the Company has an adequate internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and the nature of the business. 

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, 
issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the 
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures 

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non­
cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors 
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and h ence prov1s10ns of section 192 of the companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the order is not applicable. 

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as 
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 20 16) 
and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered 
by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company 
during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization 
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examinations of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within as period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not assurance as to future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) 
a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the companies Act in compliance with the second to sub­
section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not a pplicable. 
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b) In respect of ongoing projects, any amount remaining unspent under sub­
section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, has been transferred to 
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 
135 of the said act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 7th May, 2024 

For R H NISAR & CO 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Firm Registration No - 120895W 

RAKESH NISAR 

(PROPRIETOR) 

Membership No.: 103659 
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited 
Standalone Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations , 
2015, as amended 

To 
The Board of Directors of 
Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited, 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date 
standalone financial results of Fredun Pharmaceutical Limited (the "Company") for 
the quarter ended March 31, 2024 and for the year ended March 31. 2024 (the 
"Statement"), attached herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the 
requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the "Listing Regulations") 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Statement: 

I. is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in 
this regard; 
And 

II . gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting 
standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net 
profit/loss and other comprehensive income/loss and other financial information of 
the Company for the quarter ended March 3 1, 2024 and for the year ended March 
31, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the 
"Act"). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the " 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of th e Standalone Financial Results" section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issu ed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

~~~Ader the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder , and we have fulfilled our 
~'b~fi.& ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
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of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us 1s sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results 

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual financial 
statements. The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the 
net profit/ loss and other comprehensive income/loss of the Company and other 
financial information in accordance with the applicable accounting standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with 
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors are r esponsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as 
a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error , and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of the Statement. 
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• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, 
wh ether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not d etecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery , intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
Section 14 3 (3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the 
Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that m ay reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Other Matters 

• There has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. The Company 
was required under section 124 (1) and 124 (6) of the Act to transfer its 
dividend and equity shares, where the dividend is not claimed for last seven 
years to Investor Education and Protection Fund for financial year 2015-16, 
however there is a delay in transfer of dividend and equity shares to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund the due date of transfer was 3rd December, 
2023 but the same is not transferred as on balance sheet date 

• The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 
being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full 
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the published unaudited year-to­
date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year, which were 
subjected to a limited review by us, as required under the Listing 
Regulations. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 7th May, 2024 

For R H NISAR & CO 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration No - 120895W 

~ 
RAKESH NISAR 
(PROPRIETOR) 
Membership No.: 103659 
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                    FREDUN PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

PRESS RELEASE

Fredun Pharmaceuticals announced Q4 and FY24 results

FY24 Revenues were up by 26.2% YoY to Rs 349 Cr
FY24 EBITDA was higher by 31.4% YoY to Rs 38.9 Cr

Mumbai, India | May 07, 2024

Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited (BSE: 539730), a diversified healthcare and pharmaceuticals company,
announced its financial results for the fourth quarter and full year ended March 31, 2024.

Commenting on the performance, Mr. Fredun Medhora, Managing Director of Fredun Pharmaceuticals
said, “I am pleased to announce another strong performance during the year as our revenues increased by
26% and EBITDA grew by 31.4% over FY24, translating an improvement in our margins to 11.1% as compared
to 10.7% in FY23.
Our newly launched segments, Fredun Nutrition and Fredun Mobility have received a phenomenal response
and we see immense potential in the segments going forward.
Our Bone Grafting segment is doing very well in both Human and Veterinary areas. We continue to witness
good traction in other segments as well like Freossi, Fredun Generics and Bird n Beauty, boosting our overall
performance.”

Consolidated Financial Highlights
Particulars (In Rs Cr) Q4 FY24 Q4 FY23 YoY (%) FY24 FY23 YoY (%)

Revenue from Operations 118.0 79.8 47.9% 349.1 276.5 26.2%

EBITDA 11.2 12.3 -8.9% 38.9 29.6 31.4%

EBITDA Margin % 9.5% 15.4% -590 bps 11.1% 10.7% 44 bps

PAT 5.1 3.9 30.1% 15.6 10.8 44.6%

PAT Margin % 4.3% 4.9% -59 bps 4.5% 3.9% 57 bps

Financial Highlights

Q4 and FY24

 Q4FY24 revenues stood at Rs. 118 Crores, up by 47.9% QoQ; FY24 revenues were up by 26.2% YoY
to Rs 349 Crores

 Q4FY24 EBITDA has marginally declined by 8.9% YoY to Rs. 11.2 Crores as we continue to invest in
our new brands; for FY24, EBITDA grew by 31.4% YoY to Rs 38.9 Crores

 Q4FY24 PAT stood at Rs. 5.1 Crores, up by 30.1% YoY; FY24 PAT was Rs 15.6 Crores, up by 44.6% YoY
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Key Business Highlights

 We continue to receive repeated orders from SEA countries.
 Launched 250 products in FY24 under our cosmeceuticals segment - Beauty Fred, a new mass market

brand. This completes the product range, and we are witnessing early signs of traction in the
segment.

 Bone grafts have been widely accepted in both Human as well Veterinary markets. We are expecting
to grow by 30-35% in this segment in FY25.

 Fredun Mobility, which was launched in Sept’23 has picked up remarkably. This is branded sales
under prescription which reflects the growing confidence doctors have shown in us.

 Fredun Generics witnessed a phenomenal growth and has more than tripled during FY24.

 We launched around 45 branded Nutritional products across various targeted segmental class during
FY24 and were able to achieve double digit sales. Encouraged by the response, we are now planning
to launch the products across the western region in FY25. In addition, we will be introducing another
35-40 products during the year.

Outlook

 The Company is planning to put a new facility for production of functional foods for our veterinary
segment. It is likely to be operational by FY25.

 Our Exports segment has filed for 80 registrations during FY24 and planning for 90 more FY25. In
total we have 800 registrations in pipeline.
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About Fredun Pharmaceuticals
Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited, healthcare and pharmaceuticals company offer a range of products,
including antihypertensives, antidiabetic, antiretroviral drugs (ARVs) and narcotics. It is also engaged in the
manufacturing of dietary/herbal supplements, nutraceuticals, cosmeceuticals and other healthcare products
along with animal healthcare products. With such a diverse range of products, the Company’s objective is to
be a holistic healthcare provider. The Company primarily exports its products to Africa, Southeast Asia,
Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) countries and Latin America.

For further details, please feel free to contact:

Fredun Medhora
Managing Director, Fredun Pharmaceuticals Ltd
P: 022-4031 8111
E: investing@fredungroup.com

Runjhun Jain/Arwa Numberdar
Ernst & Young LLP
M: 98207 20993 / 99678 65150
E:runjhun.jain1@in.ey.com/arwa.numberdar@in.ey.com

Corporate Office
‘Urmi Estate’, 11th Floor,
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
(W),
Mumbai – 400 013
Tel. No.: +91 22 4031 8111

Disclaimer:
This press release may include statements of future expectations and other forward-looking statements based
on management's current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effects
upon Fredun and its subsidiaries/associates. These forward-looking statements involve known or unknown
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, performance or events to differ materially from those
expressed or implied in such statements. Forward-looking statements are provided to allow potential
investors the opportunity to understand management’s beliefs and opinions in respect of the future so that
they may use such beliefs and opinions as one factor in evaluating an investment. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and undue reliance should not be placed on them. Important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, amongst other: general economic
and business conditions in India, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our research and
development efforts, our growth and expansion plans and technological changes, change in laws and
regulations that apply to pharmaceuticals, increasing competition in and changes in political conditions in
India. Neither Fredun, nor our Directors, or any of our subsidiaries/associates assume any obligation to update
any particular forward-looking statement contained in this release. The Company undertakes no obligation
to update forward-looking statements if circumstances or management’s estimates or opinions should
change except as required by applicable securities laws. The reader is cautioned not to place undue reliance
on forward-looking statements.
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Date: 07th May, 2024 
 
To 
BSE Limited 
Listing Department, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street - Fort, 
Mumbai — 400 001 
 
Ref.: BSE Scrip Code - 539730 
 

Sub: Declaration under Regulations 33 (3) (d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 for Audit Reports on the 

Standalone Financial Results. 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 

 
Pursuant to Regulations 33 (3) (d) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to inform you that the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company has issued an unmodified opinion on the Standalone Audited Financial 
Results of the Company for the quarter and Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 
 
Request you to kindly take the above on record. 

 
Thanking you, 
For Fredun Pharmaceuticals Limited 
 
 
 
Fredun Medhora 
Managing Director & CFO 
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